PETERLEE TOWN COUNCIL

Minutes of the **Town Council** meeting held on **Monday, 22nd July 2024** at 6.30pm in the Council Chamber, Shotton Hall, Peterlee.

Present: Councillor R Burnip (Deputy Mayor) and Councillors J. Black, M.A. Cartwright,

B. Fishwick, S. Franklin, K. Hawley, A. Laing, M. McCue, S. McDonnell,

R. Moore, M. Sanderson, R. Scott, S. Simpson and H Stockport.

Also, Present: Ian Hall, (Chief Officer and Town Clerk), David Anderson (Locum Democratic

Services Manager) and Louise Hudson (Democratic Services Assistant)

73 members of the public were in attendance.

C.33/24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were offered from Councillors K. Duffy, T. Duffy, D. Howarth, K. Liddell, S. Meikle and E. Watson.

RESOLVED: That the apologies be noted.

C.34/24 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members were reminded of the need to disclose any interests in items on the agenda, whether pecuniary or otherwise.

No interests were declared.

C.35/24 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

 Planning Application Reference: DM/24/01876/FPA - Change of use of residential dwelling (use of class C3) to Children's Home (Use Class C2) in Shadforth Close.

Members of the public attended the meeting to raise concerns about the planning application to change the use of 1 Shadforth Close from residential (Class C3) to a children's home (Class C2). One resident spoke on behalf of others to outline their concerns.

The Locum Democratic Services Manager clarified that the Town Council did not make decisions on planning applications, but was a consultee and could submit comments to Durham County Council Planners.

Following discussion a motion was proposed and seconded for the Town Council to object to the application.

An amendment was proposed and seconded for the Town Council to defer consideration of the application to enable members to give further consideration to the information presented on behalf of residents.

On a vote being taken the amendment was defeated. (For 4; Against 8)

The substantive motion, to object to the application was carried. (For 9; against 4).

RESOLVED: 1. That the Town Council submit an objection to the planning application, the grounds for objection be agreed by the Town Clerk, in consultation with the Deputy Mayor.

ii. Matthew Tough, HMO presentation

Matthew Tough, representing East Durham Communities Standing Together, gave a presentation regarding concerns in relation to Homes of Multiple Occupation (HMO's).

Members advised that the issues had been raised at Durham County Council during consideration of the County Durham Housing Strategy.

Members thanked Matthew Tough for his presentation.

C.36/24 MINUTES

- a. Council held on 24th June 2024
- b. Community & Environment Committee held on 8th July 2024

RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the above meetings be approved as a

correct record and recommendations contained therein be

adopted.

C.37/24 CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINT

Consideration was given to a report of the Town Clerk, which had been previously circulated, setting out a complaint against a Town Councillor that had been investigated by the Monitoring Officer at Durham County Council. The Monitoring Officer had concluded that no further action was required.

RESOLVED: Decision of the Monitoring Officer be noted.

C.38/24 CIVILITY & RESPECT PLEDGE

Consideration was given to a report of the Town Clerk, which had been previously circulated, proposing that the Town Council adopt the Civility and Respect Pledge developed by the National Association of Town Councils, One Voice Wales and the Society of Local Council Clerks, which sought to address the growing concerns about the impact that bullying harassment and intimidation are having on local councils, councillors, clerks and council staff and the resulting effectiveness of local councils.

By adopting the pledge the Council would be demonstrating its commitment to standing up against poor behaviour across the local council sector and driving through positive changes that supported civil and respectful conduct.

RESOLVED: 1. That Peterlee Town Council formally adopt the Civility & Respect Pledge.

2. That all Members of the Council and the Town Clerk be invited to sign the Pledge to demonstrate their commitment to its principles.

C.39/24 REVIEW OF POLICIES

Members reviewed the following policies which were previously circulated:

- a. Risk Management Policy
- b. Assets & Investment Policy
- c. Use of Reserves Policy

RESOLVED: 1. That the above Policies be approved and adopted.

C.40/24 REQUEST TO LOOK AT OPTIONS FOR LOCKING GATES WOODHOUSE PARK

Consideration was given to a report of the Town Clerk, which had been previously circulated, regarding a request that had been received for the Council to consider options for locking the gates at Woodhouse Park.

RESOLVED: 1. That the gates to the car park remain open at Woodhouse Park

- 2. That the public and Councillors be requested to report any antisocial behaviour to the Police.
- 3. That support be requested from the Police and Crime Commissioner.

C.41/24 REQUEST FOR A MEETING ROOM STORAGE FACILITY AT WOODHOUSE PARK

Consideration was given to a report of the Town Clerk, which had been previously circulated, detailing a request to site a meeting room/storage room facility at the Community Garden at Woodhouse Park.

RESOLVED: That permission be granted for Peterlee Community Garden

Group to install the meeting room/storage facility at Woodhouse

Park

C.42/24 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That in accordance with the provision of Section 1 of the Public

Bodies (Admission to Meetings) Act 1960, as amended by Section 100 of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded for the remaining item by reason of the confidential nature of the business to be transacted.

C.43/24 DISPOSAL OF LAND AT LOWHILLS ROAD

Consideration was given to a report of the Town Clerk, which had been previously circulated, detailing a request for the Council to transfer the ownership of a section of land at Lowhills Road.

RESOLVED: That the subject land be offered at market value with purchaser

paying the Council's legal costs in relation to the sale.